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The HORIBA Motto

J o y  a n d  F u n
"J oy  a n d  Fu n"  r e p r e s e n t s  o u r  

d e s i r e  t o  s e e  a l l  e m p l o y e e s  

performing work that is rewarding 

and allows them to lead happy and 

fulfil l ing lives. We want our people 

to put "Joy" into their work through 

the i r  own ef for ts by mak ing the 

most of the time they spend in the 

w o r k p l a c e .  To  t h a t  e n d ,  t h e  

company provides places where 

employees can work with a sense 

of "Joy and Fun." Fur thermore, i f 

employees do work with a sense of 

"J oy  a n d  Fu n ,"  t h e i r  a b i l i t y  to  

genera te ideas increases,  the i r  

i m a g i n a t i o n  e x p a n d s ,  t h e i r  

efficiency also rises, and corporate 

value increases. This results in a 

" w i n - w i n "  r e l a t i o n s h i p  f o r  

c u s t o m e r s ,  s h a r e h o l d e r s ,  

s u p p l i e r s ,  a n d  t h e  s o c i e t y .
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HORIBA at a Glance
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Acquisitions of HORIBA ABX S.A.S. (France) in 1996 and 
HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S. (France) in 1997 and their 
subsequent growth have enabled HORIBA to expand into 
four distinct business segments.  HORIBA is now less 
sensitive to shifting economic conditions by not relying so 
heavily on any single business.

(From 2011, HORIBA has divided the Analytical Instruments & Systems segment 

into the Scientif ic Instruments & Systems and Process & Environmental 

Instruments & Systems segment, yielding five business segments going forward.)

Consolidated Net Sales
Sales by Business Segment

Analytical Instruments &
Systems

Automotive Test Systems

Other businesses
Automotive Test Systems

Medical-Diagnostic
Instruments & Systems

Semiconductor
Instruments & Systems

1995 2010
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40
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HORIBA’s acquisitions have helped expand business in 
Europe and the Americas.  Related expansion of product 
development and production in euro zone countries has 
improved our balance in currency exposure, hence making 
us more resilient to changing economic conditions and 
currency fluctuations.

Sales by Region

Japan
Japan

Overseas

Americas

Asia

Europe

1979.3 1992.3 1993.3 1994.3 1995.31980.3 1981.3 1982.3 1983.3 1984.3 1985.3 1986.3 1987.3 1988.3 1989.3 1990.3 1991.3

1992 Atsushi Horiba
becomes President & CEO

Consolidated Net Sales and Operating Income

Current company names are used.  This chart starts from the fiscal year ended March 1979, the first year to compile the financial results on a consolidated basis.

Net Sales (left) Operating Income (right)

Measures taken in 1970’s and 1980’s:

Listed in the Second Section of the Osaka Stock Exchange (1971)

Implemented a dividend policy based on a 30% payout ratio (1978)

Introduced the corporate motto “Joy and Fun” (1978)

Established domestic and overseas group subsidiaries
(i.e., European countries, the U.S., and Singapore)

What we have
changed

What we will
never change

Management balance
(business segments and regional expansion)

Globalization
(operations and human resources)

Distance from customers
(promotion of direct sales)

Corporate scale
(sales, profits, and number of employees)

Company motto

“Joy and Fun”

Corporate culture

“Open and Fair”
“Venture Spirit”

Continued efforts in

Human resources
development and R&D

(Billions of yen) (Billions of yen)
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HORIBA Motto "Joy and Fun"

HORIBA at a Glance

To Our Stakeholders

Feature "New Mid-Long Term Management Plan"

CFO message

Business Overview

Automotive Test Systems

Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems

Scientific Instruments & Systems

Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems

Value Creation Based on Invisible Values

Human Resources

Technology

Governance

CSR

Financial Section

Eleven-Year Summary

Corporate Philosophy

Corporate Data

1996.3 1997.3 1998.3 1999.3 2000.3 2001.3 2002.3 2003.3 2004.3 2005.3 2006.3 2006.12 2007.12 2008.12 2009.12 2010.12 2011.12

1996 Acquire ABX S.A.
(now HORIBA ABX S.A.S.) in France

2002 Begin direct sales of
Automotive Test Systems in Japan

2004 Launch “One Company Matrix
Management”

2005 Acquire automotive development test system (MCT)
business of Carl Schenck AG in Germany

2006 Launch previous Mid-Long
Term Management Plan
(ended 2010)

2011 Launch new Mid-Long Term
Management Plan (ending 2015)

Notation of HORIBA and
HORIBA, Ltd.

In this annual report, the HORIBA Group of 
companies is described as “HORIBA“ and 
the parent company as “HORIBA, Ltd.”

Change of Fiscal Year-End

HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from 
March 20 to December 31, effective from 
fiscal 2006. As a result of this change, the 
fol lowing irregular f iscal periods were 
recorded: Fiscal 2006 for HORIBA, Ltd. 
and HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd. 
comprised the 9 months and 11 days 
from March 21, 2006 to December 31, 
2006; and fiscal 2006 for HORIBA STEC, 
Co., Ltd. comprised the 9 months from 
April 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006. The 
f iscal year-end of other consol idated 
HORIBA subsidiaries was December 31.  
The i r  2006 f i sca l  pe r iods rema ined 
unchanged at 12 months.

Disclaimer Regarding
Future Plans and Forecasts

Th is annua l repor t conta ins cer ta in 
statements descr ib ing fu ture p lans, 
strategies, and performance forecasts of 
HORIBA, Ltd. and its affiliated companies. 
These statements reflect management’s 
assumpt ions and be l i e f s  based on 
currently avai lable information. Actual 
per formance may d i f fer s ign i f icant l y 
f rom the forecast due to unforeseen 
circumstances in the operating environment.

1997 Acquire Instruments S.A.
(now HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S.) in France
Acquire Instruments S.A.
(now HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S.) in France
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MESSAGE

We will continue to pursue
growth based on increased
corporate value

Becoming a stable, highly profitable company

Raising corporate value through change

Overview of Fiscal 2010 Performance

In the 2010 f iscal year, which ended December 31, 
HORIBA posted higher sales and prof its for the f irst 
t ime in three f isca l  years. Consol idated net sa les 
to ta l l ed  ¥118.5 b i l l i on  ( up 13.4% yea r-on-yea r ) ,  
operating income ¥12.2 bil l ion (up 139.1%), and net 
income ¥7.9 billion (up 150.7%).  Positive contributions 
reflect improved profitability in the Medical-Diagnostic 
Instruments & Systems segment and a recovery in the 
Semiconductor  Ins truments & Sys tems segment 
stemming from a strong demand for semiconductors 
and expansion in the light-emitting diode (LED) market. 
Ea rn ings rema ined weak in  the Automot i ve Tes t  
Systems segment, which was the profit growth driver 
until 2008.

Looking back over the Previous
Mid-Long Term Management Plan

To ach ieve ba lanced grow th in  i ts  four  bus iness 
segments, HORIBA has promoted group management 
based on the policy advocated in 2004 “HORIBA Group 
is  One Company.”  As a resu l t,  in  f i sca l  2007, we 
achieved an operating income ratio of 11.5% and ROE 
of 11.4% ahead of the p lan’s respect ive f ina l year 
targets of 10.0% and 11.0%. Earnings temporar i ly 
weakened due to the financial crisis, but in fiscal 2010, 
the f ina l year of the p lan, we posted an operat ing 
income rat io of 10.4%, which exceeded the plan’s 
target. During the plan’s term, corporate management 
continued a transit ion to a “Matr ix management by 
business segment and region.” However, we must still 
tackle issues of (1) decreased profitability of HORIBA, 
Ltd.; (2 ) delayed business expansion in Asia ; (3 ) a 
d ivergence f rom customer v iewpoints due to our 
technology-centric product development; and (4) the 
diversif icat ion of investment through an increase in 
types of products.

To Our Stakeholders

Net Sales, Operating Income Ratio and ROE

Operating income ratio (right)

ROE (right)Net sales (left)
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Chairman, President & CEO

New Mid-Long Term
Management Plan
Launched

Numerical targets for fiscal 2015

Basic policy 1

Concentrated investment in
highly profitable businesses

Basic policy 2

Change from strategy led by
“technology development” to
one led by “customer viewpoint
and business models”

Basic policy 3

Complete “One Company
Matrix Management”

Basic policy 4

Accelerate global product
development and production

Net sales ¥150.0billion

Fiscal 2010 - ¥118.5 billion

Operating
income ratio 13.0%or more

Fiscal 2010 – 10.4%

ROE
(Return on equity) 11.0%or more

Fiscal 2010 – 9.7%
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MESSAGE

We will focus on making concentrated
investments in highly profitable businesses

By making aggressive investments under the previous 
mid- long term management p lan, we managed to 
substantially improve profitability in the Medical-Diagnostic 
Instruments & Systems segment and the Semiconductor 
Instruments & Systems segment.  As a result, these 
segments have grown into businesses that are now 
contributing to HORIBA’s overall profits with high profit 
marg ins.  We wi l l  cont inue to make concentrated 
investments in these two segments to reduce our 
dependence on Automotive Test Systems segment.  And, 
we will continue to develop a corporate structure that will 
enable us to generate long term stabi l i ty with high 
earnings. 
We plan to accelerate our global expansion by concentrating 
personnel and technical development resources, especially in 
water quality-related products (supplied by the Process & 
E n v i r o n m e n t a l ,  S c i e n t i f i c ,  a n d  Se m i c o n d u c to r  
Instruments & Systems segments) where signif icant 
growth in demand is expected.  In the  Automotive Test 
Systems segment, we wi l l  invest in launching new 
products focused on enhancements in our drivel ine 

Becoming a stable, highly
profitable company
Path of change to achieve
transformation

related products in order to turn into profitability and 
expand the MCT business*, which we acquired in 2005.
*MCT business: Automotive development test system business acquired from Carl 
Schenck AG in Germany

Change from strategy led by
“technology development” to one led by
“customer viewpoint and business models”

HORIBA has tradi t ional ly  deve loped and suppl ied 
distinctive products with original technology in niche 
“analysis” markets.  Going forward, our business model 
will provide “product and analysis solutions,” which will 
con t r i b u te  to  h i g h e r  q u a l i t y.   T h e  p ro d u c t  a nd  
applications technology we propose to our customers 
should yield greater efficiency and labor saving in their 
operations.   By creating the industry standard through 
proposals that include measurement methods and 
sof tware,  we w i l l  expand the markets  in  our  f i ve 
business segments* as we aim to become the global 
leader in the analysis and measurement market.
*From 2011, HORIBA has divided the Analytical Instruments & Systems segment into the 
Scientific Instruments & Systems segment and Process & Environmental Instruments & 
Systems segment, resulting in f ive business segments: Automotive Test Systems, 
Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems, Semiconductor Instruments & Systems, 
Scientific Instruments & Systems, and Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems.

Continuing to foster human resources and
technologies that create further growth

HORIBA is promoting management that clarifies “what we 
will change” and “what we will never change,” practices we 
learned by overcoming several economic crises in the past. 
“What we will never change” is our continued investment in 
“Invisible Values” (assets that do not appear in the financial 
statements) such as human resources and technology. 
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From left (as of April 1, 2011)

Hideyuki Koishi
Segment Leader of Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment

Bertrand de Castelnau
Segment Leader of Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems segment

Dr. Kozo Ishida
Executive Vice President

Dr. Michel Mariton
Segment Leader of Scientific Instruments & Systems segment

Sunao Kikkawa
General Manager of Finance & Control Division

Atsushi Horiba
Chairman, President & CEO

Dr. Jai Hakhu
Chairman, President & CEO of HORIBA International Corporation (U.S.)

Rex Tapp
Segment Leader of Automotive Test Systems segment

Tadao Nakamura
Segment Leader of Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems segment

Juichi Saito
Director and General Manager of Corporate & Segment Strategy Division

While economic cycles of recession and boom have 
repeatedly occurred, our continued investment has, without 
fail, been the driving force behind substantial growth in 
subsequent recovery phases. Based on this experience, we 
will continue to invest in technology and human resources 
as we prepare for future growth. On this occasion, our 
earnings are under pressure, so we have been reducing 
costs, but we have not cut back our R&D investment. 
Moreover, The HORIBA COLLEGE, which began offering 
educational opportunities to our human resources in 2009, 
has steadily increased the number of available courses. 
These continuing initiatives to create value will steadily bear 
fruit, even during challenging times.

We will continue to pursue growth by
increasing our corporate value

Since its founding 58 years ago, HORIBA has consistently 
focused on a unique corporate culture symbolized by the 
company motto “Joy and Fun.” This corporate culture 
cultivates “Invisible Values,” such as our human resources 
and unique technologies that are valued worldwide. We 
ultimately deliver these “Invisible Values” to customers in 
the form of real “products” that create corporate value and 
earnings. Without being influenced by economic cycles, 
we will continue to pursue corporate growth based on the 
enhancement of our “Invisible Values.”
Our headquarters are located in Japan, but HORIBA is not 
simply another Japanese entity that conducts business 
around the wor ld. Rather,  our object ive is to be a 
first-class, global company that understands the culture, 
customs, and values of the countries and regions where 
we do business, and conducts business in harmony with 

Measures Taken So Far

Measures to Take from Now on

Changed the corporate name and unified our corporate brand

Introduced “Matrix management”

Restructured group companies in the Americas and Europe,
and organized development bases

Introduced “Shared services*” in the U.S. and Japan 

Global expansion of the Blackjack Project

Initiated the HORIBA COLLEGE

Enhance head office function 

Introduce “Shared services” in Europe, Asia, and South America

Implement ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) systems in
all group companies, making  it complete

the local community and its employees. As part of these 
endeavours, in Apri l 2009, we appointed three non- 
Japanese employees from our foreign operations to be 
corporate of f icers of HORIBA, Ltd. And, in 2010, we 
welcomed a person with management experience in a 
global blue-chip company as an executive corporate 
officer who brings very valuable strengths to HORIBA. 
I firmly believe that implementing management based on 
this corporate philosophy will lead to sustained growth 
while generating high earnings on a stable basis.  As a 
global company, we will consequently receive a fair market 
valuation from investors around the world.
HOR IBA h a s  h e l p e d  s oc i e t y  ove rc o m e va r i ous  
development problems, such as pollution and global 
warming, th rough the prov is ion of ana ly t ica l  and 
measurement instruments. To provide “assurance” to 
people, we wil l  continue to supply a wide variety of 
products to assist social development. 
The operating environment is uncertain, due in part to the 
impact of the Great East Japan Ear thquake, which 
occurred in March 2011. However, instead of being 
complacent and running away from r isk, or bl indly 
stepping on the brake, we intend to pursue management 
strategies which turn risk into opportunity by correctly 
ascertaining situations and boldly acting.
I sincerely hope that all our stakeholders understand and 
agree with our management policies and will continue to 
support us for many years to come.

April 2011

Atsushi Horiba
Chairman, President & CEO

*“Shared services” refer to the consolidation of certain common services in several divisions and
  organizations in order to enhance the productivity of the entire company or group companies and
  achieve cost reductions. 
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FEATURE

Aiming to Become a Steady and
Highly-Profitable Company

As Mr. Atsushi Hor iba, Pres ident of HORIBA Ltd., 
mentioned in his message, we wi l l concentrate our 
management resources in the Automotive Test Systems, 
Medical-Diagnostic and Semiconductor Instruments & 
Sys tems segments as  we l l  as  the  wate r- re l a ted 
businesses. At the same time, we will review and decide 
what to do with unprofitable businesses; in particular in 
businesses operated by HORIBA, Ltd. At the end of 
2010, we decided to withdraw from the crystal business 
in the Scientific Instruments & Systems segment. We will 
make f i na l  dec i s ions  on  othe r  unde rpe r fo rm ing 
businesses in the near future.
However, we will continue investing in businesses which 
currently generate low earnings but have attractive 
growth potential. The MCT business is a good example. 
It is not currently profitable but is expected to generate 
profit when its products are combined with emission 
measurement systems as part of valuable, total solutions 
for our customers. We are determined not to quench the 
sparks of technical advancements that appear in the 
course of basic research and reinforce development of 
high demand products for specific, and new, market 
applications.

The HORIBA Group has set a goal to steadily generate

high profits while simultaneously making progress toward changing its business model,

restructuring its organization, and applying global management skills during

the management plan ending 2015. Juichi Saito, Director and General Manager of

Corporate & Segment Strategy Division of HORIBA, Ltd., explains the new management plan.

Concentrating Investments in
Highly-Profitable Businesses

Selection of Businesses to Focus Upon

Medical-Diagnostic/Semiconductor/Automotive
measurement, Water-related business

Making Judgments on Business Potential

  Businesses operated at HORIBA, Ltd. will be reviewed.
  We have already withdrawn from or scaled back
  some businesses (i.e., crystal business.)

  Continue to invest in businesses with high potential.
  MCT business

  Cultivate a wide variety of measurement technologies.

Areas to keep investing

Review the investment in
terms of growth potential

Emission measurement (Automotive)
Mass Flow Controllers (Semiconductor)
Hematology analysis (Medical)
Water-related products

MCT business (Automotive)
Crystal business (Scientific)
Thin-film test (Semiconductor)

¥12.2billion

Operating Income
(FY2010)

Feature:
New Mid-Long Term
Management Plan

2011  2015
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1: Organizational reform to enhance our corporate structure

HORIBA’s head office organization* was restructured in 
January 2011 to take on additional capabilities as global 
headquarters. The organization, previously separated by 
business segments, has been reorganized by function so 
that inter-segment informat ion is shared, thereby 
enhancing the ability to propose innovative solutions. We 
will also improve the speed and quality of decision-making 
by clearly defining the responsibilities of persons in charge 
of development, production, and sales.  These positions 
will report to a newly-appointed person in charge of overall 
business strategies.
*Further details on the organizational restructuring are presented on “Value Creation 
Based on Invisible Values: Technology” (page 32).

2: Efficient management by region

During the previous Mid-Long Term Management Plan a 
“shared services” organization, previously implemented in 
the U.S., was introduced in Japan. Going forward, we will 
exploit the benefits of the multiplier effect from these 
successful examples in the U.S. and Japan to introduce 
“shared serv ices” in Europe and Asia. We wi l l  a lso 
promote increased efficiency by making cost reductions 
and adopting more specialized operations.

Evolving and Completing “One Company Management”

HORIBA wi l l  cont inue to make fur ther progress in 
establ ishing its global footprint, especial ly in Asian 
countries. In 2011, the first year of the new management 
plan, we established a representative office in Vietnam as a 
foothold for business expansion in Vietnam, part of an area 
where Southeast Asian countries are achieving striking 
economic growth. In China, the Semiconductor Instruments 
& Systems business wi l l  expand production with a 
joint-venture factory in Beijing. The Medical-Diagnostic 
Instruments & Systems business will strive to expand 
business in South America by relocating and enlarging the 
reagent plant in Brazil. We will also accelerate building 
global footholds for the Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & 
Systems bus iness and Automot ive Test  Systems 
businesses to meet anticipated high growth in demand.

Accelerating Establishment of a Global
Development and Production System

Numerical Targets by Segment

Total

46

34

30

24

16

150

35.7

22.5

27.6

20.8

11.7

118.5

2010
Results

2015
Plan

+5%

+9%

+2%

+3%

+6%

+5%

CAGR

Net Sales

5

6

6

1.5

1.5

20

1.6

2.3

6.3

1.1

0.8

12.2

2010
Results

2015
Plan

+25%

+21%

-1%

+6%

+11%

+10%

CAGR

Operating Income

Numerical targets
for fiscal 2015
assumed exchange rate :
U.S. dollars:¥80, Euro:¥110

Operating Income by Segment

200920082007200620052004200320022001 2010

8

6

4

2

0

(Billions of yen)

HORIBA has changed its business segment categories from four to five 
starting in 2011. The Analytical Instruments & Systems segment has been 
divided into the Scientific Instruments & Systems segment (scientific analysis 
instruments) and the Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems 
segment (environmental measuring instruments). The remaining three 
segments remain unchanged.

Net sales :

¥150.0billion

Fiscal 2010 - ¥118.5 billion

Operating income ratio :

13.0%or more

Fiscal 2010 – 10.4%

ROE (Return on equity) :

11.0%or more

Fiscal 2010 – 9.7%

Automotive Test Systems
Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems
Scientific Instruments & Systems
Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems

Semiconductor

Medical

Automotive

Scientific

Process &
Environmental

Semiconductor

Process &
Environmental
Scientific

Automotive

Medical
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FEATURE

Business portfolio

35%

25%

15%

5%

-5%
4% 8% 12% 2% 4% 6% 8%2% 4% 6% 8%16%

Net Sales Growth by Segment

35%

25%

15%

5%

-5%

35%

25%

15%

5%

-5%

5%

%

Scientific: 9%
Scientific: 7.5%

Business Growth in a Balanced Manner, Led by the Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems segment

Growth led by the
Automotive segment

2001  2005

Growth seen in the
Semiconductor segment

2005  2010

Better-balanced
structure, driven by

growth in the
Medical segment

2010  2015

2001  2005 2005  2010 2010  2015

Automotive Medical

Semiconductor

Automotive      Medical      Semiconductor      Scientific      Process & Environmental

Operating Income Mix by Segment

Automotive: 58%

Medical: 8%

Semiconductor: 22%

Process &
Environmental: 3%

Automotive: 13%

Medical: 19%

Semiconductor: 52%

Process &
Environmental: 7%

Scientific: 9%
Automotive: 25%

Medical: 30%
Semiconductor: 30%

Process &
Environmental: 7.5%

FY2005 Results FY2010 Results FY2015 Plan

Feature: New Mid-Long Term Management Plan 2011  2015

Prior to 2005 HORIBA’s growth was led by the Automotive Test Systems segment. In the subsequent five years, the company 
had been supported by the recovery and growth of the Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment. Over the next five 
years, leading up to 2015, we expect attractive profit contributions from the Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems 
segment, which will balance our earnings structure.

(Profitability)

(Growth)

(Profitability)

(Growth)

(Profitability)

(Growth)

¥11.2
billion

¥12.2
billion

¥20.0
billion

Vertical axis : Operating Income ratio in the final year    Horizontal axis : Compound Annual Growth Rate of Net Sales    Size of circle : Net Sales Volume



Annual Report 2010  | 12

Aiming to Become a Steady and Highly-Profitable Company

Water-Related Business Potential

Juichi Saito joined HORIBA, Ltd. in 1982. Af ter serving as General Manager in the Automotive 
Emission Measurement Planning & Development depar tment, he was appointed President of 
HORIBA Instruments Incorporated (U.S.) in 2000. Since joining HORIBA, he has twice worked in 
the U.S. for a total of 14 years where he devoted his efforts to expanding HORIBA’s business in the 
U.S. market. He was appointed Director of HORIBA, Ltd. in 2005 and Vice President of HORIBA 
STEC, Co., Ltd. in 2008. He concurrently served as a leader in the Semiconductor Instruments & 
Systems segment. He was appointed General Manager of the Corporate & Segment Strategy 
Dvision of HORIBA, Ltd. in 2011.

Juichi Saito

New Mid-Long Term
Management Plan
Symbol Mark

A yacht’s sails enable it to go forward regardless of the direction of the wind.

HORIBA is l ike such a yacht,  sa i l ing the seas wi th f i ve sa i ls  ( bus iness segments )  wh ich are 
ef f ic ient ly coordinated wi th each other so that the company is propel led toward i ts goals by 
redirect ing winds (oppor tun i t ies ) into dr iv ing forces. HORIBA’s prev ious symbol mark was a 
balloon. While both a balloon and a yacht are moved by wind, properly set sails will enable a yacht 
to move forward, even aga inst headwinds. Th is expresses the new at t i tude at HORIBA, the 
attitude of proactively using the wind, rather than passively being carried by it.

We believe our water-related business is a promising 
area where our strengths can be applied.  We expect to 
expand this business by accelerat ing appl icat ions 
deve lopment  and shar ing informat ion among our 
segments. The water-related world market is estimated 
to be ¥86 trillion in aggregate, encompassing areas of 
l i fe  sc ience,  hea l th  care,  and inf rastructure,  i .e.,  
desalination and purification of seawater. We estimate 
that HORIBA can develop business opportunities in the 
analysis segment of the water-related market, which is 

estimated to be about 1% (¥1 tr i l l ion ) of the whole 
market. We believe we can offer a significant number of 
products to satisfy one set of common requirements by 
dif ferent business segments being involved jointly in 
planning and development. By having this business unit 
use the established sales networks of other segments, 
we wil l be able to enter markets much faster than a 
potent ia l  entrant  s ta r t ing f rom scratch. Th is is  a  
promising area with potential to grow into a “Water 
business segment” in the future.
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CFO MESSAGE

HORIBA is investing for growth and
rewarding shareholders in a balanced manner

Basic Capital Policy

HORIBA’s basic capital policy is as follows.

Pay dividends in line with corporate 
growth and earnings.

Maintain the standard payout ratio at 30% of 
HORIBA, Ltd. net income.

1

Select the optimal financing method, 
depending on capital needs and with 
due consideration to factors such as 
the equity ratio, capital cost, market 
interest rates, and credit ratings.

2

Achieve high ROE (Return on equity) 
through earnings growth.

Mid-Long Term Management Plan (2015) : 
11% or more

3

Implement a Dividend Policy Linked to
Earnings Growth

HORIBA was the first listed Japanese company to start 
paying shareholder dividends based on a payout ratio 
(30% of parent company’s net income). This practice, 
which began in 1978, has paid dividends to its owners 
without interruption for 32 years.

Financial Policies

HORIBA maintains an appropriate level of liquidity in 
hand to ensure ef f icient funding in accordance with 
capital requirements. This is an important guideline for 
HORIBA’s f inancing activit ies. We define l iquidity in 
hand to be a sum of cash and cash equivalents and the 
open amount of the commitment lines that have been 
negotiated with f inancial inst i tut ions. At the end of 
2010, liquidity in hand amounted to ¥39.4 billion, which 
was ¥34.4 bill ion in cash and cash equivalents and a 
¥5.0 bi l l ion open balance of commitment l ines with 
banks. We believe that this cash should be reserved for 
future investment opportunities such as M&A.

Message from the CFO

Credit Ratings

HORIBA has obtained credit ratings from Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I ) and Japan Credit 
Rating Agency, Ltd. (JCR) in order to obtain funds from capital markets. Our credit ratings ( long-term and 
short-term) in 2010 were A- from R&I and A from JCR.

Sunao Kikkawa joined HORIBA, Ltd. in 1974. He was assigned to work at HORIBA Instruments 
Incorporated (U.S.) in 1982 and returned to HORIBA, Ltd. in 1988. He was appointed General 
Manager of the Account ing Depar tment in 1996 and Senior Corporate Of f icer in 2007. He 
participates in globalizing HORIBA’s domestic accounting operations in accordance with the group 
globalization while maintaining compliance with international accounting standards. At present he 
is engaged in raising ef f iciency in capital strategy and group administrative operations as Senior 
Corporate Officer and General Manager of the Finance & Control Division.

Sunao Kikkawa
Senior Corporate Officer and General Manager of Finance & Control Division



Annual Report 2010  | 14

HORIBA has continued to invest in production facilities 
as well as R&D and human resources during both good 
t imes and economic downturns. This strategy has 
contributed to increased market share during recovery 
phases from economic downturns.
*Capital expenditures are a sum of investments in tangible and intangible fixed assets.

Continued Investment for Growth
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Capital Expenditures and R&D Expenditures

HORIBA had had negative f ree cash f low for three 
consecutive years from 2005 to 2007, primarily due to 
the acquisition of the MCT business in September 2005 
and capital investments for the ERP introduction in 
2006-2007. Since 2008, when our business results 
deteriorated due to the economic slowdown, we have 
recorded positive free cash flow for three consecutive 
years as tota l  assets  were reduced by inventor y 
reduc t ion and ea rn ings were  genera ted by cos t  
reduction.
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Free Cash Flow

HORIBA lowered the per-share dividend to 13 yen in 
20 0 9.  T h i s  ac t i on  was  due  to  t h e  d e te r i o r a te d  
profitability of the Automotive Test Systems segment, 
the core business of HORIBA, Ltd. This was a result of 
the 2008 economic recession triggered by the Lehman 
Brothers Shock. We raised the per-share dividend by 4 
yen to 17 yen in 2010 thanks to the recover y and 
growth of the Semiconductor and Medical-Diagnostic 
Instruments & Systems segments.

Dividend Payment Record of the Past 11 Years
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Automotive Test Systems

Strong support for automotive development
HORIBA’s automotive emission measurement systems have been adopted as the 
primary standard by national certification bodies in many countries. This recognition 
has led to a commanding top position in the industry with an 80% global market 
share. Business acquisitions have expanded our product line-up into complete 
turn-key systems for automotive development. These test systems are used at the 
forefront of research and development and quality control. Our test systems are 
indispensable for developing new types of engines, such as gasoline, diesel, hybrid 
electric powertrains and alternative fuel engines. We expect to experience an 
increase in demand for our automotive development instruments.

Principal products Emission measurement systems, automotive emission analyzers, on-board 
emission measurement systems, driveline test systems, drive recorder

Major customers Automobile and motorcycle manufacturers, automotive component 
manufacturers, multi-purpose motor manufacturers, government regulatory 
agencies, oil companies, automotive maintenance and repair centers

Product applications Development of new gasoline, diesel and hybrid powertrains, vehicle 
certification and quality control, in-use vehicle inspections

Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems

Proactive product development in a large market with stable growth
HORIBA medical products are primarily blood testing instruments and reagents for 
the in-vitro diagnostics market, with over ¥2 tri l l ion in global annual sales. The 
segment’s business model is based on earnings generated from reagents sales. 
HORIBA sel ls i ts or iginal small and medium-sized blood cel l counters in the 
diagnostic market for point-of-care testing (POCT), which is defined as immediate 
diagnostic testing during patient care; typically in small hospitals, testing centers, 
outpatient clinics, and surgery centers. We are endeavoring to boost instrument 
sales which will lead to expanded sales of testing reagents.

30%
Segment sales

23%
Segment sales

19%
Segment sales

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems

Helping to improve yields in semiconductor manufacturing processes
The semiconductor industry is cyclical but continues to grow. HORIBA’s main products 
are mass f low contro l lers ; dev ices that control  gas and l iqu id f lows in the 
semiconductor, solar cell, and LED (light-emitted diode) manufacturing process.  
Semiconductor products also include many other types of monitoring equipment for 
semiconductor production. HORIBA provides customers with high-level solutions that 
support technical advances in processing, miniaturization, and yield enhancement.

The global automotive industry’s shifting investments for research and development
Risk factor

Principal products Equipment for blood sample analysis (hematology analyzers, equipment 
for measuring immunological responses, clinical chemistry analyzers, 
blood glucose measurement systems)

Major customers Medical testing centers, small to medium-sized hospitals, medical 
practitioners

Product applications Health and diagnostic testing, disease diagnosis

Impact on earnings from changes in medical insurance systems in different countries
Risk factor

Principal products Mass f low control lers, chemical concentration monitors, thin-f i lm 
analyzers for semiconductors and LCD inspection, reticle/mask particle 
detection systems

Major customers Semiconductor production equipment manufacturers, semiconductor 
device makers, semiconductor cleaning equipment manufacturers

Product applications Flow control of gases and liquids, monitoring of cleaning fluid concentrations 
in semiconductor manufacturing processes, semiconductor and LCD quality 
control inspections

Significant fluctuation in demand caused by the “silicon cycle” in the semiconductor
industry and investments related to solar cell and other energy sources

Risk factor

Business Overview
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Scientific Instruments & Systems

Achieve a good balance with unique analytical measurement
technologies and business operations
HORIBA manufactures and sells over 500 types of instruments in the leading edge of 
scientific technology. We command leading market shares thanks to our high-level of 
analytical technology know-how and enhanced customer support. The Scientific 
segment develops basic analytical and measurement technologies, which play key 
roles in providing new technologies to other business segments.

Process &
Environmental Instruments & Systems

Providing analytical and measurement instruments for
compliance with environmental regulations
HORIBA prov ides tota l solut ion technologies for preservation of the global 
environment and to fulfill analytical needs in manufacturing processes. We ensure 
public safety, security, and health.

17%

Asia
sales

36%

Japan
sales

28%

Europe
sales

19%

Americas
sales

18%
Segment sales

10%
Segment sales

Principal products pH meters, particle-size distribution analyzers, X-ray f luorescence 
analyzers, Raman spectrophotometers, diffraction gratings

Major customers Manufacturers, national research institutions, universities, government 
agencies

Product applications R&D, product quality testing, criminal forensics

Investment trend of national government agencies and other institutions
Demand fluctuation following changes in environmental regulations

Risk factor

Principal products Stack gas analyzers, water quality analysis and examination systems, air 
pollution analyzers

Major customers Manufacturers, government agencies, electric power companies
Product applications Measurement of wastewater and water supplies, gaseous emissions, 

environmental pollution monitoring

Demand fluctuation following changes in environmental regulations
Risk factor

Business Summary
by Region

Japan
Steady growth and high market shares 
for products that are related to R&D 
app l i ca t i ons and env i ronmen ta l  
regulations.

Asia
U s e  k n o w - h o w  a cc u m u l a te d  i n  
developed markets to expand business 
in Automotive, Medical and Process & 
Environmental business.
H igh grow th in  Ch ina,  Ind ia ,  and 
Southeast Asian countries.

Americas
High potential for expanding market 
share in this market that represents 
40% of global demand for analytical 
and measurement instruments.
Use HORIBA Technology Center as a 
base to enhance competitiveness.
Focus on product development and 
m a r ke t i n g  f o r  t h e  m e d i c a l  a n d  
semiconductor markets.

Europe
S a l e s  g row th  g e n e r a te d  by  t he  
acquisit ion of companies (HORIBA 
Jobin Yvon and HORIBA ABX) and a 
business (the MCT business.)
T he new R & D Cen te r  i n  Pa r i s  i s  
scheduled to open in 2012 as a core 
faci l i ty for product development in 
Europe.
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BUSINESS REVIEW   |   AUTOMOTIVE TEST SYSTEMS
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measurement:79%

Other:3%Vehicles:3%
Drivelines:5%

Engines:10%

Net Sales and Operating Income

Sales Breakdown

Japan AmericasAsia Europe

34% 17% 17% 32%

30%
Automotive Test Systems Segment sales

No.1 in the world in emission measurement systems
HORIBA’s emission measurement systems command the top position in the industry with an 80%* worldwide market share and have been 
adopted as the primary standard by national certification bodies in many countries.  We have increased sales in this segment by responding 
to rising demand to measure emission characteristics of alternative fuels such as biofuel, and the requirement to measure emissions in more 
diverse applications such as construction machinery, ships, locomotives, and general purpose engines. (*HORIBA’s estimate)

2011: Renewed investment by the automotive industry
Thanks to increased investment by Asian automotive manufacturers in 2010, HORIBA’s 
sales of emission measurement systems increased.  However, overall segment sales 
and earnings decreased from the previous year because of investment cuts by 
automakers in Japan, Europe, and the Americas. In 2011, we are expecting a surge in 
investment by automakers worldwide thanks to improved earnings. Japan may be the 
exception as investment plans may be delayed due to the impact of the Great East 
Japan Earthquake. In the meantime, we anticipate a long-term steady recovery in 
demand, triggered by the European Commission fuel efficiency requirements that will 
be implemented in Europe in 2012 and various new emission standards likely to 
become regulation requirements in 2014-2015. We intend to be  prepared for the 
expected market growth by strengthening our development and production systems.

New Mid-Long Term Management Plan:
Future development of the MCT business
The acquisition of the MCT (Mechatronics) business of Carl Schenck AG in Germany, 
in September 2005, has allowed us to broaden our market that entails supporting the 
full scope of automotive development, including engines, hybrid vehicle development, 
driveline components, wind tunnel balances, and brakes. This capability is critical for 
developing all-electric cars that do not require emission measurement. By achieving 
increased market share in developed markets and enjoying new demand in emerging 
markets, we expect to grow our business and improve profitability.

Note) HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from March 20 to December 31, effective 
from fiscal 2006. (Please refer to Page 4.)

Provide solutions for hybrid and
electric car development : Focus on driveline test
2010 can be defined as the year of the electric car, with the launch of electric or 
plug-in hybrid cars by automakers in many countries. We expect that automakers will 
allocate part of their development spending to all-electric cars, for which HORIBA’s 
MCT business provides essential measurement systems to evaluate power-train 
efficiency and aerodynamic performance. In the meantime, development of hybrid or 
plug-in hybrid cars that use engines, motors and batteries requires new features in 
emission measurement systems. Emission measurement is becoming increasingly 
important in this area. Moreover, high demand for emission measurement systems is 
expected in emerging markets, which is in l ine with increased need for local 
development amid the accelerated growth in automotive sales.0 20 40 60 80 100
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HORIBA’s Automotive Test Systems Segment Sales in
Comparison to R&D Expenses in Japan’s Automotive Industry

Source: Survey of Research and Development, R&D Expenditures by Industry
              (Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications)
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Progression of Japanese, European,
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Source: Japan Automobile Manufacturers Association Inc.,
              Report of December 2008; Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry

Source: Ministry of the Environment; Japan Automobile Manufacturers Association, Inc.
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Automotive Fuel Efficiency Requirements
in Developed Countries

These systems continuously and 
simultaneously measure gases over 
a broad range of concentrations. 
They are widely used in R&D and 
product certification in the automo-
tive industry.

The driveline is an extremely important 
powertrain component that transmits 
energy from engines or motors to the 
vehicles’ tires. HORIBA’s driveline test 
systems use the latest simulation 
technology for applications in all types 
of driveline testing. This is HORIBA’s 
strength; demonstrated by providing 
f lexible systems for all applications.

Driveline Test SystemsEmission Measurement Systems

(Trillions of yen) (Billions of yen)

80% 56%

World
market share

15%

World
market share

Segment
sales

5%

Segment
sales
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Motor, Battery
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systems &

drive recorders
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Major Products and Market Shares Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA

HORIBA’s Automotive Business
Invest heavily in driveline testing systems to achieve sales growth and improve 

profitability.

MCT business growth will fully utilize the relationships of trust with automakers that were developed
in emission measurement systems, which command an 80% global market share.
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BUSINESS REVIEW   |   MEDICAL
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Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems

2011: Expect firm sales to continue in Japan and
benefits from the weaker euro in Europe and the U.S. 
In 2010, HORIBA’s medical segment profits increased in tandem with improved 
profitability thanks to growth in the installed base generated by the introduction of new 
products in the Japanese market in late 2008, and the weaker euro, which enhanced 
the competitiveness of HORIBA ABX S.A.S. (France) products. In 2011, we expect to 
continue expanding our installed base with new products in Japan and sales growth 
worldwide, particularly in China, India, Southeast Asia, and other emerging markets.

New Mid-Long Term Management Plan:
Establish business base for expansion
The U.S. is the world largest medical equipment market and HORIBA aims to increase 
its U.S. market share by utilizing its technologies for hematology analyzers. We will also 
consider M&A opportunities that will enable us to expand our business base. In 
mass-consumption areas with high near-term growth potential, such as China, India, 
Southeast Asia and Latin America. We plan to install localized production of reagents 
in order to reduce costs of distribution and inventory management, respond promptly 
to customer needs, and improve profitability. Moreover, we will roll out an automatic 
blood cell counter plus CRP technology, a strategic product in Japan, to China and 
other Asian markets, in order to expand our market share and improve profitability.

Market leader in small-sized hematology analyzers
Over the years, based on its innovation, HORIBA has acquired a leading position 
worldwide in the small-sized hematology analyzers. In particular in Japan, HORIBA 
commands a market share for small-size hematology analyzers that is approximately 
50%. Point-of-care testing (POCT), which is defined as immediate, accurate diagnostic 
testing at the site of patient care, will merit higher demand as it contributes not only to 
quick and proper medical diagnostics, but also to a reduction in medical expenses with 
fewer drugs being dispensed. HORIBA in Japan is steadily expanding its market share in 
small-sized hematology analyzers and blood glucose measurement instruments that are 
used in familiar medical environments such as private practitioner clinics or hospital 
testing rooms. 

*Point-of-care testing (POCT) is defined as medical testing at or near the site where patients are located; 
in places such as surgery by a doctor or a physician, a hospital ward, or a clinic for outpatients

Net Sales and Operating Income
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19%
Segment sales

Medical diagnostic
instruments:38%

Testing
reagents:54%

Other:8%Sales Breakdown

Japan AmericasAsia Europe

21% 10% 27% 42%

Stable business model supported by sales of reagents
HORIBA’s Medical-Diagnostic Instruments and Systems segment generates steady profits from the sale of reagents used by the installed 
base of HORIBA medical-diagnostic and blood sample analysis instruments. Our products are used in blood testing, biochemical and 
other areas that are directly linked to assessing the health of people. Another characteristic of this segment is that currency risk has been 
diversified by having two bases for development and production, namely Japan and France. 

Note) HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from March 20 to December 31, effective 
from fiscal 2006. (Please refer to Page 4.)

200920082007200620052004200320022001 2015
(Plan)

2010
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Target Markets (Hospitals)/
Product Development by Country and Region

JapanEurope/Americas Asia

Blood tests are essential for assessing the 
health of people and animals. These analyzers 
check red and white blood cell counts as well 
as hemoglobin concentrations and platelet 
counts in laboratories and hospitals.

This is the first counter in the world to 
simultaneously measure blood cell counts 
and C-Reactive Protein (CRP), which the 
body produces in response to internal 
inflammation, thus facilitating faster and 
more accurate diagnosis.

Automatic Blood Cell Counter plus CRPAutomatic Hematology Analyzers

Major Products and Market Shares Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA
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Uniqueness in small-sized instruments

HORIBA developed a unique product that 
measures CRP (C-reactive protein) levels 
in addition to hematology measurements.

HORIBA has established a strong relation-
ship of trust with medical sales companies 
that have their own strong sales network in 
Japan, Europe, and the Americas.

By reducing the amount of reagents used 
per test, operating costs can be reduced. 
By reducing the amount of sample volume 
to one as minute as “a drop,” the physical 
burden on patients can be alleviated, 
enabling even babies to be tested.

Strong sales network

Low operating costs and low sample
volume requirement for measurement

Product Development in the In-Vitro Diagnostics
Analysis Market
HORIBA aims to capture the POCT needs with its globally-competitive small or 

mid-sized hematology analyzers and expand its market share. And also play a 

key role in the hematology market, with its medium-sized instruments and its 

high throughput solution.

Global Development
We plan to install local reagent production facilities in mass-consumption areas in order to reduce distribution 

costs and inventory management, respond promptly to customer needs, and improve profitability.

Sales Ratio of Testing Reagents in HORIBA’s
Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems segment
The sales ratio of testing reagents is increasing in proportion to the growth in 

the installed base of instruments.

HORIBA’s strengths in hematology
analyzers

Medium- and
small-sized blood cells
Small-sized
blood cells + CRP

Medium- and
small-sized blood cells
Small-sized
blood cells + CRP

Small-sized blood
cells + CRP
Blood glucose
measurement systems

High        Diffusion rate       Low

Number of
hospitals & clinics

Many       Few

Growth in market shares 
with support capabilities 
and sales network

Focus sales of plus CRP 
products to clinics

Expand business with a 
launch of plus CRP 
products

Enhance support 
capabilities with a new 
reagents plant

Aim to increase market 
shares by enhancing 
sales and services

Expand markets with 
plus CRP products

Direct sales of blood 
glucose measurement 
systems

Expand sales in the 
blood glucose and POCT 
markets of large 
hospitals

Product development: France, Japan
Reagents plant: France, Japan, China, Brazil, (India), (U.S.)
Sales base: European countries, Japan, U.S., Brazil, China, Thailand, India, (Indonesia)
Countries in parenthesis indicate bases of future plans.
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23%
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems Segment sales

No.1 in the world in mass flow controllers
Mass flow controllers, essential components in semiconductor manufacturing equipment, are the mainstay products for HORIBA’s 
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment. We have a leading 45%* market share for these products. We will continue to provide 
highly functional, miniaturized products that answer the ever increasing needs for improved productivity and high per formance in 
semiconductor manufacturing processes. (*HORIBA’s estimate)

2011: Respond to a surge in demand thanks to
an increase in production capacity
In 2010, HORIBA posted record-high segment sales and earnings thanks to increased 
spending for manufacturing processes to miniaturize semiconductors and investments 
in LEDs (light-emitting diodes) and  other new markets, which began to recover in the 
second half of 2009. In 2011, we anticipate continued investment in manufacturing 
equipment for semiconductors, LEDs and solar cells (photovoltaic), and expect steady 
growth in sales for mass flow controllers and chemical concentration monitors. 
However, we forecast that the operating income ratio wil l be lower due to the 
appreciation of the yen and competitive pressure on sales prices.

New Mid-Long Term Management Plan:
New product capabilities to satisfy new markets and
new applications
We have developed products for various applications such as mass flow controllers 
and chemical concentration monitors that are used in the semiconductor wafer 
cleaning process. HORIBA’s strength lies in its line-up of products that respond to the 
needs of unique markets. Recent examples include photovoltaic, which are receiving 
great attention in many countries as a recyclable energy source, and LEDs, which are 
a promising product as a next-generation light source.

Expand sales in Asia, supported by strong trust of
semiconductor makers
HORIBA’s service strength is its capability to support customers in Asia. Our strategy 
is to expand our market share by gaining more credibil ity from manufacturing 
equipment makers of semiconductors, photovaltaics, and LEDs, and by making 
enhanced quality products that satisfies the rising demand from customers. 
In addition, we will start producing mass flow controllers at Beijing HORIBA METRON 
Instruments Co., Ltd., a joint venture established in Beij ing, China. We plan to 
establish its position in Asia, where demand is rising.

Net Sales (left)
Operating Income (right)

(Billions of yen) (Billions of yen)

Net Sales and Operating Income

Sales Breakdown

Japan AmericasAsia Europe

Note) HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from March 20 to December 31, effective 
from fiscal 2006. (Please refer to Page 4.)
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Photovoltaic

¥7
billion

These compact units are used in semiconductor 
manufacturing to monitor cleaning chemical 
concentrations. They ensure that no cleansing 
fluids are wasted, which optimizes the cleaning 
process and helps boost production yields.

Chemical Concentration Monitors

45% 79%

World
market share

80%

World
market share

Segment
sales

9%

Segment
sales

These high-precis ion contro l lers 
are used to regulate gas and 
liquid f low rates in semiconductor 
manufacturing processes, typically 
in thin-f i lm format ion processes. 
They are also indispensable components 
in high-quality semiconductor and 
LED production.

HORIBA’s Semiconductor Instruments & Systems
Segment Sales in Comparison to Worldwide Sales of
Semiconductor Manufacturing Equipment

Image of Mass Flow Controller Market by Application in 2015

HORIBA’s Share of Global Market for Mass Flow Controllers
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Production System for Mass Flow Controllers
Thanks to the growing demand for manufacturing equipment, production volume 

for mass flow controllers is expected to increase. However, our sales prices are 

likely to quickly decrease due to emerging Asian competitors.  To combat this 

trend HORIBA is utilizing the Beijing HORIBA METRON manufacturing operation 

to ensure it is competitive in low-price markets.
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Silicon
semiconductors
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LED(MOCVD)

¥10
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Silicon
semiconductors

¥31billion

LED(MOCVD)
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Photovoltaic
¥5billion

HORIBA HORIBA
METRON
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Mass Flow Controllers

Major Products and Market Shares Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA
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Other:7% Molecular &
Microanalysis:37%

Elemental
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Optical components:18%

Water quality analysis:8%

Particle size analysis:9%

32% 20% 21% 27%

18%
Scientific Instruments & Systems

2011: Growing demand in emerging markets and
higher demand from general industries
In 2010, thanks to more government spending in Japan, demand from universities, 
government offices, and other institutions. HORIBA experienced favorable growth 
in sales in the first half for Raman spectrophotometers and related instruments. In 
the second half, limited demand for general industrial products slowed down the 
recovery in segment sales. The appreciation of the yen also resulted in lower 
prof itabil ity for products manufactured in Japan, and overseas sales declined 
when converted into yen. In 2011, we anticipate a return to solid sales thanks to 
growing demand in the private sector, despite some lower profitability concerns 
caused by decreased government spending.

New Mid-Long Term Management Plan: Support
development of energy sources for the next generation
Demand for our products manufactured by HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S. (France) is 
growing in basic research for advanced lithium ion batteries, which are expected 
to become the core energy storage components for next-generation automobiles. 
Specif ic products include dif fraction gratins, f luorescence spectroscopy, and 
Raman spectrophotometers, which command No. 1 global shares (HORIBA 
estimates).

Provide leading-edge analyzers and developing
technology that supports HORIBA’s other businesses
HORIBA has made effective use of its “measurement” technologies that have been 
continually developed since its inception and has developed a wide variety of 
products that respond not only to current environmental issues but also to the 
fu ture,  such as nex t-genera t ion ene rgy sources .  In  add i t i on to p roduct 
development, this segment continues to invest in basic technology and provide 
new technologies to other business segments.

HORIBA’s nano-level measurement technologies provide solutions on various data analysis
Behaviors of nano-level atoms and molecules have been highlighted in microscopic analysis basic research. Providing solutions for data 
analysis, HORIBA supports advanced research that ventures into unknown territories, where outcomes may lead to new materials or 
advanced, high-tech products. In addition, HORIBA’s analyzers are widely used in foreign-object examinations, defect analysis of drugs, 
food, or electronic components, criminal investigation, and archaeological work.

Net Sales and Operating Income
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Sales Breakdown

Japan AmericasAsia Europe
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Note) HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from March 20 to December 31, effective 
from fiscal 2006. (Please refer to Page 4.)
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2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

30% 17%

World
market share

50%

Japanese
market share

Segment
sales

7%

Segment
sales

Raman spectroscopy is a spectroscopic technique that effectively identifies the chemical 
composition of physical materials and analyzes molecular structures. In recent years, 
Raman spectroscopy has been attracting attention for applications in cutting-edge 
research. Raman scattering is typically very weak, 
so a highly-sensitive and optimal optical design is 
needed. HORIBA Jobin Yvon’s outstanding 
record in optics-related technology has success-
fully been utilized in pursuit of extremely high 
performance Raman spectrophotometers.

HORIBA has been recognized as one of 
the top pH meter brands since its develop-
ment of Japan’s first glass electrode pH 
meter in the 1950’s. HORIBA offers a full 
pH product line-up to satisfy varied 
customer needs: from desk-top models to 
support laboratory research to rugged 
instruments for field use to measure river 
water, groundwater, and waste water.

Business Based on R&D of
Leading-Edge Products and Materials

Carbon
nanotube

LED

Graphene*

Superconductivity

Solar
battery

Lithium ion
secondary

battery

Rare
metals

Fuel cell

HORIBA, Ltd.Focus Markets and Applications HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S.

pH meters

Particle-size
distribution
analyzers

Compound semiconductors

LED (light-emitting diode)
manufacturing equipment

Solutions for quality management
and process management

Drug discovery and biotechnology

Quality assessment from basic
research for drug discovery

Pharmaceutical
composition mapping

Lithium Ion Batteries

Positive/negative electrode,
separators, and electrolytic
solutions

Formulation mapping

HORIBA’s strengths

Blending of technologies of HORIBA, Ltd. and
HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S.

Capabilities to propose numerous applications in
advanced materials analysis and other high-end fields

Development structure

HORIBA is enhancing its cooperation 

with academia in related fields in Japan. 

In addition, development in France is 

fortified by a joint research program 

with École Polytechnique*1 and the 

acquisition of Genoptics S.A.*2

HORIBA aims to become a standard for 

mass production processes.

Gratings

Raman
spectrophotometers

Fluorescence
spectroscopy

Fluorescence
lifetime systems

Organic EL

*1 École Polytechnique: It is a state-run, renowned engineering school in France.

*2 Acquisition of Genoptics S.A.: A French venture company with advanced technologies in the biochemistry field, acquired by HORIBA Jobin Yvon S.A.S. in April 2009.

*Graphene is one-atom-thick sheets of sp2-bonded carbon atoms. Many graphene
sheets stacked together are graphite.

New R&D center in Paris, scheduled for completion in 2012.

pH MetersRaman Spectrophotometers

Major Products and Market Shares Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA

Business Model
HORIBA’s many products in the Scientific Instruments & Systems segment have 

been making a significant contribution in advanced research and development.

Target markets
HORIBA instrumentation satisfies analysis needs in material development for 

positive/negative electrodes and separators for lithium ion batteries. A wide 

range of products is developed for customers that include corporate research 

centers, academic institutions and universities.

E
lem

ental
analyzers

X-ray fluorescence
analyzers
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Stack gas
analysis:37%

Water quality analysis:35%

Air pollution:18%

Other:10%

62% 14% 10% 14%

10%
Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems Segment sales

Business to support global environment and new energy industries
HORIBA provides analytical and measurement instruments for a wide variety of applications to measure air, water, and soil constituents. We 
supply these instruments to various industries in today’s world of increasing demand for environmental emissions reduction and process 
monitoring. We play an important role in gas measurement and monitoring of industrial liquid waste in the electric power, steel, and chemical 
industries as well as energy industries in oil refining, and heavy chemicals; purified water management for medical and semiconductor use; 
and constant monitoring and control of water quality in the pharmaceuticals, food, and cosmetics fields. In addition, HORIBA’s accurate 
measuring technology helps provide safety in environmental radiological measurement.

2011: Growing demand in emerging markets and
recovery in the general-use market
In 2010, investment in the private sector did not recover significantly, although 
HORIBA improved profitability in this segment thanks to improved productivity in 
Japan. In 2011, private-sector investment is expected to remain subdued but we 
expect to increase sales and earnings because of anticipated demand growth in 
emerging markets.

New Mid-Long Term Management Plan:
Aiming to become No. 1 in the environmental and
analytical instrument market
HORIBA is determined to grow in the global environmental analytical instrument 
market, estimated at ¥150 bil l ion, by uti l izing its accumulated know-how and 
experience in Japan, Europe, and the Americas. We will also expand our market 
sha re in  the wate r  qua l i t y  measu rement  a rea ,  by pu t t i ng pH measur ing 
technology, which has been a HORIBA business since the 1950’s, at the core. We 
expect to grow sales and earnings by establishing a cycle of design, production, 
and sales in emerging markets.

Measures to address the growing environmental
regulation markets in Asia
We will expand our business activity in the promising environmental analytical 
instrument market in Asia and other emerging regions. In January 2011, we 
established a base in Vietnam, an area experiencing rapid economic growth. We 
are preparing to make it a foothold for our business expansion in Southeast Asia.

Net Sales (left)
Operating Income (right)

(Billions of yen) (Billions of yen)

Net Sales and Operating Income

Sales Breakdown

Japan AmericasAsia Europe

200920082007200620052004200320022001 2015
(Plan)

2010

Note) HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from March 20 to December 31, effective 
from fiscal 2006. (Please refer to Page 4.)
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HORIBA has a leading market share in 
Japan in continuous emission monitoring 
systems used in plants and other facilities 
that generate gaseous emissions and 
soot. Our instruments have been highly 
evaluated for the application design 
capability of their sampling systems, 
which are essential in continuous 
measurement of a variety of gases. The 
analyzers are used in system applications 
for power generation, petrochemicals, 
steel, paper, foods and pharmaceuticals. 

HORIBA’s air pollution analyzers 
have won high acclaim in the field 
as highly reliable analyzers that 
demonstrate excellent precision 
and long-term stability at ppb* 
concentrations. They are used in 
over 50 countries to monitor air 
quality by municipal governments 
and industrial companies.

* ppb:parts per billion.

HORIBA‘s products are used for 
water treatment processes. We 
have a wide-ranging water quality 
product line to measure pH, the 
basic water quality indicator, as well 
as chemical oxygen demand (COD), 
total nitrogen, and total phospho-
rous. They have been highly evalu-
ated by municipalities and compa-
nies in such industries as electric 
power, gas, petrochemicals, steel, 
paper, foods, and pharmaceuticals.

Stack Gas
Analyzers

Water Quality
Analyzers

Air Pollution
Analyzers

Water Quality AnalyzersStack Gas Analyzers

These analyzers provide highly 
sensitive and precise measurements 
of  NOx, SO2, CO, CO2, and O2 
content of gases emitted by boilers 
and furnaces in thermal power 
stations. A single unit can simultane-
ously and continuously measure all 
five gases. HORIBA has a leading 
market share in this competitive 
market with over 50 competitors.

The chemical oxygen demand (COD) testing instrument is 
used to indirectly measure pollution levels in water. In 
Japan, water qual i ty regulat ions st ipulate maximum 
concentrations of pollutants in closed marine areas such as 
Tokyo Bay.  Three const i tuents* are requi red to be 
measured by municipalities in charge of ports, lakes, and 
plant facilities.  New regulatory enhancements for these 
three constituents are currently being considered for 
inclusion in the seventh water quality regulations due to be 
enacted in fiscal 2014. This action is expected to lead to an 
increase in demand for water quality analyzers. HORIBA 
aims to expand sales efforts in Asia, where regulations 
similar to Japan’s model are expected to be introduced.

37% 20%

Japanese
market share

Segment
sales

35%

Segment
sales

Target market: Environmental regulation market

Business Model
The growth driver shifts from developed markets to regulation business in emerging markets.

Non-regulatory business
(productivity improvement)

Demand expansion of
regulatory business

Industrial Process

Environmental Preservation

Environmental Regulation

Environmental Pollution

Japan in 1960's

Most emerging markets

Japan at present

Developed markets

50%

Japanese
market share

Environmental
radiation monitor

Specifications

Suggested sales price: 125,000 yen (before tax)
Operating range: 0.001 – 9.999 micro Sieverts per hour (µSv/h)

A palm-sized environmental radiation monitor, the 
PA-1000 accurately measures radiation levels 
using a scintillation crystal that produces light in 
the presence of radiation. The PA-1000 is suitable 
for measuring radiation in work areas or for 
environmental checking.

PA-1000

Major Products and Market Shares Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA

*COD, total nitrogen,
and total phosphorous

M
arket size of the segm

ent
Time/Market maturity
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VALUE CREATION

Value Creation Based on Invisible Values

A core objective of acquisitions is to 
acquire highly competent human 
resources. Constructive acquisitions 
have  ra i sed  HORIBA’s  ra t io  o f  
non-Japanese employees to 56%. 
This high ratio was not achieved by 
pursuing low-cost overseas labor 
forces. In fact, HORIBA acquisitions 
have acquired very talented people, 
many holding doctorate degrees. 
This makes us a very unique Japanese 
company.

Human Resources

Technological development is the most 
important growth driver that wil l enable 
HORIBA to achieve the new Mid-Long Term 
Management Plan targets: ¥150 billion in 
consolidated net sales and an operating 
income ratio of 13% or more. We f irmly 
believe that technical development is the 
lifeline of a manufacturer such as HORIBA. 
To make an analogy, technical capability is a 
form of basic physical fitness, which cannot 
be maintained without continual training and 
exercise. Using this analogy, HORIBA needs 
to keep training in order to maintain the 
power to make a dash for ward in  the 
upcoming recovery phase of the economy.

Technologies

Invisible Values = assets that do not
appear in the financial statements

Rationale of
Invisible Values

The number of fruit and the value of the harvest are important,

but it is more important that the roots are growing strong

Other Asia
10%

Europe
32%

Americas
14%

Japan
44%

Ratio of
Employees by

Region
(end of 2010)
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Creating value by using our “Invisible Values” is one of HORIBA’s important management themes.

The fruit (earnings) and the trunk with branches and leaves (the balance sheet),

are both visible and important values. However, we believe that the essence of

good management is to grow strong thick roots (invisible values) in rich soil (corporate culture).

We do not believe that a management’s emphasis on maximizing short-term

earnings and neglecting investment in invisible values will

foster sustainable growth or increased corporate value.

HORIBA is promoting “One Company 
Matr i x  Management ”  in  i ts  g loba l  
operation in 25 countries. The aim is 
to enhance our HORIBA brands.

Organizational Structures

HORIBA works on growing “invisible 
assets,” such as human resources, 
te c h n o l o g i e s ,  a n d  i t s  c o r p o r a te  
cu l t u re .  T h e se  a re  the  “ i nv i s i b l e  
assets” that become the sources for 
g e n e r a t i n g  f u t u r e  e a r n i n g s  a n d  
enabling enterprise continuity, while 
achieving numerical targets for net 
sales, prof its, and other indicators. 
We be l i eve that  these e f fo r ts  a re  
ref lected in raising the value of the 
HORIBA brands.

Brands

HORIBA he lps  imp rove  peop l e’s  
quality of life (QOL) in a sustainable 
society by supply ing products and 
providing services to customers. In 
o r d e r  t o  a c h i e v e  t h i s  g o a l ,  w e  
collaborate with suppliers and group 
companies in Japan and overseas to 
improve the qual ity of our products 
and services.

Customers

Roots: Invisible Assets
Soil: Corporate Culture

Number of Fruit:

Earnings of the
Current Fiscal Year



29

VALUE CREATION

Value Creation Based on Invisible Values   Human Resources

HORIBA COLLEGE Project

Since i ts open ing in Februar y 2009, the HORIBA 
COLLEGE has hosted close to 70 courses for over 
1,300 at tendees in the f i rst two years at the “FUN 
HOUSE” Training center. Our employees teach and 
learn f rom each other. Our ult imate objective is to 
insure HORIBA’s know-how and skills that have been 
accumulated over 50 years will be inherited by the next 
generation. Our bel ief is that the exper t knowledge 
d i r ec t l y  l i n ke d  to  ou r  bus i n e s s  ope ra t i ons  and  
experiences should be maintained by sharing within the 
group. Implanting HORIBA’s corporate culture at the 
same t ime leads to the ef fect i ve deve lopment  of  
high-quality personnel.

HORIBA Brand Book

HORIBA published the “HORIBA Brand Book” in 2007 to preserve and cultivate HORIBA’s 
corporate culture while expanding global business. The Book is like a bible that tells the 
origin of the HORIBA Brand, lessons which employees reaf f irm, share, and convey to 
others. This is distributed to all group and newly-hired employees.
The Book contains the story behind the corporate motto “Joy and Fun” and messages 
contributed by 36 employees. It is published in six languages: Japanese, English, French, 
German, Chinese, and Korean.

Blackjack Project

Since its launch in 1997, the Blackjack Project (BJ) has 
been HORIBA’s activity designed to foster innovation in 
the mind-set and action of a l l  our people. In 2010, 
approximately one-half of BJ themes completed were 
from overseas HORIBA Group companies. In recent 
years,  the number of  reg is te red themes f rom the 
overseas group companies has grown nicely. Starting 
in 2007, a BJ World Cup competition to select the best 
themes has been held every year. BJ plays an important 
role in sharing our corporate culture, experiences, and 
knowledge.

FUN HOUSE (Training center)
Extended in February 2009

Registered Themes of Blackjack Project
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Through economic booms and recessions HORIBA has consistently invested in human resources, which 

are precious “invisible values” of the company.

The foundation for sustainable value creation is the understanding each HORIBA employee has of our 

corporate culture that is symbolized by “Joy and Fun,” “Open and Fair” and “entrepreneurial spirit” and 

puts this heritage into practice through his or her assigned tasks. We have established a global personnel 

development and exchange program to advance personal growth and development for all our employees.

HORIBA, Ltd.
Group companies in Japan
Group companies in Overseas
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Accelerate Development of
Unexploited Applications
A unique point of HORIBA’s technology development is 
that the basic technology in analysis of four forms of 
matter (solids, liquids, gases, and powders) is utilized in all 
f ive business segments. We bel ieve there are st i l l  
unexplo i ted appl icat ions wi th in our f i ve bus iness 
segments. We plan to pursue development of these new 
applications and propose new business models. Our 
potential should continue to expand when we collaborate 
with our customers in technology development. What we 
need most is speed in getting new products to market. We 
bel ieve that the recent organizational changes wi l l  
accelerate the pace of development.

From Core Technology to
Product Development
HORIBA allocates development resources to be focused 
in areas of analysis and measurement technology, and 
u s e s  th i s  co re  te c h n o l o g y  to  d eve l op  supe r i o r  
applications. This leads to ef f icient development of 
advanced products by our five business segments, each 
of which serves different markets.

Operating Income Ratio and R&D Expenditures to
Net Sales comparison with other companies
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R&D Expeditures
R&D Expeditures to Net Sales

(Billions of yen) (Operating Income Ratio)

(R&D Expeditures to Net Sales)

(%)

Core
Technology

Products

Customer

Regulations

Customer arrange a product usage

Core
Technology

&
Application
Technology

Products & Solutions

Regulations

Communicate with
customer for a manner of utilization

HORIBA's development approach "Before" HORIBA's development approach "After"

Customer

Technical Development will Accelerate Further Growth
The development of basic technologies and product technologies is the lifeline of HORIBA as an analytical 

equipment manufacturer. Based on the strategy of maintaining R&D investment at 7-8% of sales, we have 

continued to invest during economic downturns, while our competitors have reduced their investments. 

This strategy has boosted our market share during subsequent recovery phases. In 2009-2010, our sales 

declined sharply, but we maintained the same level of R&D investment. We firmly believe this investment 

will contribute to our future growth. HORIBA aims to improve the efficiency of our R&D investments and 

realize a higher operating income ratio.

SemiconductorMedicalScientificProcess &
EnvironmentalAutomotive

HORIBA

30%

25%

20%

15%
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0%
3% 6% 9% 12% 15%

Note) compiled from published data

Value Creation Based on Invisible Values   Technology

R&D Expenditures and R&D Expenditures to Net Sales

Spectroscopic Analysis
Technology for analysis of 
visible light

Particle-Size
Distribution Analysis
Technology to measure 
particle diameter and size 
distribution

Gas Flow Control
Technology to measure 
and instantly control the 
flow of gases

Infrared Measurement
Technology for real-time 
analysis of elements in 
gases
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What HORIBA, Ltd. aims for with Organizational Change 
The Research & Development Division of HORIBA, LTD. plays an important role in the recent

organizational change. Dr. Masayuki Adachi, General Manager of the Division,
answered questions about objectives of the change.

Outline of the Organizational Change for Enhancement of HORIBA, Ltd.

Automotive Medical Process &
Environmental Scientific

Division
manager

Division
manager

Division
manager

Division
manager

R&D
manager

R&D
manager

R&D
manager

R&D
manager

Superintendent
of Production

Superintendent
of Sales

Automotive Medical Process &
Environmental Scientific

Before After

Dr. Masayuk i Adachi jo ined HORIBA, Ltd. in 1985, and has been engaged in research and 
development of emission measurement systems, which included an assignment at the University of 
California Irvine Combustion Laboratory. As the Segment Leader of the Automotive Test Systems 
segment in 2004-2006, he was involved in the acquisition of the MCT business of Carl Schenck AG 
(Germany). He served as President of HORIBA International Corporation (U.S.) in 2007-2010. He 
was appointed as Senior Corporate Officer in 2010, and as General Manager of the Research & 
Development Division of HORIBA, Ltd. in 2011. He has a doctorate in engineering.

Dr. Masayuki Adachi

What is the concept of the recent organizational change?
The Research and Development Division, where 
operations were previously separated by business 
segment, has been reorganized by function so that 
i n te r-segment  expe r t i se  i s  sha red  among a l l  
segments, and capability to provide new solutions 
is enhanced.

What are specific changes you are expecting?
We established an Application Development Center 
where 123 scientists and engineers are engaged in 
development and verification of new products. We 
w i l l  become more conscious of our customers’ 
expectations of our products. Our smaller, agile units 
of people will be closer to our customer base and 
easier to capture their needs in product development, 
instead of being distant and simply responding to 
customers’ specifications. We will utilize HORIBA’s 
hardware, software, and application technologies to 

provide solutions which bridge HORIBA’s applications 
expertise to our customers’ needs.

What kind of effects can be expected?
O n l y  a  f e w  m o n t h s  h a v e  p as s e d  s i n c e  t h i s  
organizational change but some effects are already 
emerging. More seeds for future application have been 
found as a result of our development engineers visiting 
customers. This is new and dif ferent from the past 
when mainly our sales and service people visited 
customers. Our engineers have now begun to think 
that their job is more than simply satisfying customer 
specifications. They are beginning to think more about 
and be more sensitive to what is happening at users’ 
s i te, beyond what is wr i tten in a speci f icat ions 
document. The application know-how accumulated in 
each business segment is now consolidated into a 
shared asset. I believe this will make a huge difference 
going forward.

The person in charge of business is only responsible for development.

Responsibility in financial outcome is not clearly defined.

There is little expertise sharing among development projects.

The person in charge of overall business strategy coordinates business and

functions so that responsibility in financial outcome can be clearly defined. 

Accelerated expertise sharing among development projects.

Superintendent
of Strategy

Superintendent
of R&D

Superintendent
of Production

Superintendent
of Sales
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Philosophy
HORIBA fully recognizes the importance of its shareholders as the company’s owners. Since the 1950’s, 

when Japanese corporations paid lit tle attention to corporate governance, HORIBA has pledged to 

conduct its corporate affairs by the following policies which focus on our responsibility to the company’s 

owners based on the corporate motto, “Open and Fair.”

Corporate Governance

Appointment of External Directors and
Corporate Auditor
To avoid managing with an introverted approach, HORIBA 
has always appointed directors and corporate auditors 
from outside the company. This practice started with the 
company’s origin in 1953 and has been continued through 
to the present day.

Open General Meetings of Shareholders
Since i ts in i t ia l  stock l is t ing in 1971, HORIBA has 
encouraged all shareholders (whom we frequently call 
owners) to attend the annual General Shareholders 
Meeting. These meetings are held on Saturdays to 
facilitate public attendance. Since 2005, an informal 
get-together event has been held afterwards to enable 
shareholders to talk directly with the management.

Implementing a Dividend Policy that
Emphasizes Shareholder Returns
HORIBA was the first listed Japanese company to start 
paying shareholder dividends based on a predetermined 
payout ratio (30% of parent company’s net earnings); this 
practice started in 1978 and has paid dividends without 
interruption for 32 years.

Adoption of a Corporate Officer System
Since 2005, HORIBA has decreased the number of 
directors to five members to prevent the Board of Directors 
meetings from becoming inflexible and to ensure lively, 
in-depth discussion. In addition, we introduced a corporate 
officer system in 1998 to augment managerial capability. 
HORIBA now has 17 corporate officers, including four 
non-Japanese. In April 2010, we invited Dr. Jai Hakhu, who 
had ser ved on the board of a prominent overseas 
company, to become a corporate officer. We are expecting 
his contribution to be extremely valuable, particularly in 
implementing the new Mid-Long Term Management Plan 
and our business expansion in the U.S. market.

Chairman, President & CEO Atsushi Horiba
Executive Vice President Dr. Kozo Ishida
Managing Director Fumitoshi Sato
Director Juichi Saito
Director (External) Masahiro Sugita Auditor of MSD K.K. 
  Auditor of 77 Bank Ltd.
Auditor Hiroshi Tajima
Auditor (External ) Kanji Ishizumi President of the Law Offices of
  Chiyoda Kokusai, Attorney at Law
Auditor (External ) Keisuke Ishida Chairman of the Board, CEO, Shashin Kagaku Co., Ltd.
  Chairman of the Board, SK-Electronics, Co., Ltd.

The number of Bord of Directors and Corporate Officers

1998 Directors: 7 (including 2 external members)

Corporate Officers: 4 2011Directors: 5 (including 1 external member)

Corporate Officers: 17 (including 4 non-Japanese)

Board of Directors and Auditors

Executive Corporate Officer Dr. Jai Hakhu
Senior Corporate Officer  Dr. Michel Mariton
 Dr. Masayuki Adachi
 Sunao Kikkawa
 Takashi Nagano
 Dr. Kiyoaki Hara
Corporate Officer Rex Tapp
 Bertrand de Castelnau
 Atsushi Nakamine
 Yuichi Muroga
Junior Corporate Officer Tsukasa Satake
 Narihiro Oku
 Hiroshi Kawamura
 Tadao Nakamura
 Kenichi Obori
 Seiji Usui
 Yasuo Yamashita

Corporate Officer

(As of April 1, 2011)
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An External Director’s views on HORIBA’s corporate governance

Corporate Governance
Structure Chart

Board of Directors (Directors) Board of Auditors (Auditors) Independent Auditor

President

Corporate Officers

Business Segments Leaders Committees, etc.*

Internal Control Promotion Committee

HORIBA CSR Promotion Committee HORIBA, Ltd. CSR Promotion Committee** Compliance Committees

Directors and Corporate Officers’
Meeting/ Operations Committee/
Management Committee
by Business Segment

Business Execution Monitoring

Internal controls

General Meeting of Shareholders

Litigation, Exports, Legal Affairs,
Public-Sector Grants, Audits of
Subsidiaries' Management, etc.

HORIBA Corporate Philosophy and Ethical Guidelines      Joy and Fun, Open and Fair

Internal Auditing
(Group Internal Audit Office)

Integrated Management System (IMS)
(Quality, Environmental & Safety Management Center)

Appointment,
Dismissal

Coordination

Appointment,
Dismissal

Supervising,
Monitoring

Supervising, Monitoring Financial Audit

Supervision

Reporting

Supervising

Supervising

Coordination

CoordinationCoordination

Reporting Principles

Promotion

Advisory,
Proposals

Reporting
Discussed Items

Reporting

Reporting

ReportingDirection
and Orders

* Committees, etc. refer to committees and conferences that are established and registered based on the "Regulations concerning conferences and committees,"
 such as the Promotion Committee for Management of Business with Public Subsidies and the Safety and Health Committee.

** The CSR Promotion Committee decides on the CSR Policy and priority measures and organizes CSR-related specific activities. In addition, it discusses and
 approves the issues and the measures concerning the promotion of risk management.

Approval of Resignation, Dismissal, and Reappointment
Judging Suitability of the Independent Auditors

Selection, Dismissal
Business Execution
Instructions

Direction and Orders, Reporting

Masahiro Sugita served as Director-General 

of the International Department of the Bank 

of Japan and Director of the Research 

Inst i tute of Overseas Investment of the 

Export-Import Bank of Japan before being 

appointed as Auditor of the Bank of Japan, a 

position he held from 1999 to 2003. 

In 2003, he began to serve as Outside 

Auditor (full-time) of Banyu Pharmaceutical 

Co., Ltd., the former MSD K.K. Since 2006, 

he has been appo inted as an outs ide 

director of HORIBA, Ltd. He also serves as 

an auditor of 77 Bank Ltd.

Appointment,
Dismissal

1

2

3

The Board meetings
I am delighted to attend HORIBA’s Board meetings where 
lively and constructive small-group discussions are conducted 
in a casual atmosphere.

Personal views on the management
HORIBA’s management is always interested in learning what 
is going on outside the company that may be of importance to 
it, and is intent on listening to comments and opinions from 
outside. The managers are excel lent in prov id ing the 
information External Directors need to do their work. I find 
HOR IBA i s  we l l  equ ipped  w i t h  wha t  i s  needed  f o r  
internally-driven innovation at this time in particular, when 
Japanese compan ies have greater need to innovate 
themselves.

Issues related to corporate governance
HORIBA’s management has been aware of corporate 
governance in managing the company since 1950’s. This is quite 
uncommon for a Japanese company. I believe that corporate 
governance issues tend to have more than one right answer and 
answers could differ company by company. And, I think it is 
important for HORIBA to establish its corporate governance 
procedures as the company grows so that there can be effective 
collaboration and organic functioning of all three: full-time 
directors/officers, external directors, and auditors.

External Director

Masahiro Sugita

Supervision
Entrusting Business
Execution
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CSR Promotion Structure
Since April 2005, HORIBA has organized the HORIBA 
CSR Promot ion  Commi t tee  in  o rde r  to  p romote  
CSR-re lated speci f ic  act iv i t ies. The commit tee is 
composed of Dr. Kozo Ishida, Executive Vice President of 
HORIBA, Ltd., as Chairman, and Directors in charge of 
CSR of its four major group companies in Japan, as 
members. It decides on CSR Policy and priority measures. 
The CSR Promotion Committee of each group company 
implements these policies and measures, and organizes 
various social action programs on themes such as on 
education or environment or in their communities.

CSR Report: Gaiareport
HORIBA has published the "Gaiareport" as an annual 
environmental and corporate social responsibility report. 
Our activities on behalf of environmental protection and 
contribution to society are introduced in the report. Please 
visit our website for details.

http://www.horiba.com/gaiareport/

Promote CSR in the Course of
Day to Day Operations
HORIBA helps realize a pleasant and happy society by 
promoting corporate activities based on the key issues 
of the global environment, human health, public safety 
and energy.

HORIBA Group CSR Policy

First Class Quality –
Striving to provide First Class Quality
1 : Overall quality improvement
  Raise awareness on safety, manners, and
  compliance issues
  Reduce risks against breach of compliance issues
  Satisfy corporate legal requirements
  Respond speedily to solve quality issues and
  other problems
2 : Security enhancement (information, intellectual
 properties, improving building security, etc.)

3 : Promoting saving of energy and resources

Key Issues of Fiscal 2010

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Philosophy and Basic Policy

“Encourage CSR in the Course of Day to Day Operations”
HORIBA’s products, supplied by its five business segments, are intimately linked with key challenging 

issues of our times: energy, human health, global environment, and public safety. With a sense of pride, 

we will support products and technologies that contribute to building a sustainable society and improving 

the people’s quality of life. This is the essence of HORIBA’s CSR activities.

CSR
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2001.3 2002.3 2003.3 2004.3 2005.3

For the Year

Net sales

Operating costs and expenses

Operating income

Net income (loss)

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Research and development expenses

¥77,873
73,123
4,750
1,443
3,032
3,276
4,938

¥74,468
71,921
2,547

(1,071)
3,137
3,381
4,336

¥78,501
73,027

5,474
786

3,444
2,915
4,044

¥85,073
78,223
6,850
2,074
3,501
3,037
5,129

¥92,492
83,119
9,373
3,524
3,956
2,944
5,636

At Year-End

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade notes and
accounts receivable

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment, net

Trade notes and
accounts payable

Liabilities with interest

Shareholders’ equity

Share price at end of fiscal period (¥)

Number of employees (consolidated)

¥101,006
17,443

-
31,960
19,503
18,541

79
12,081
30,545
39,796

825
3,540

¥98,766
16,625

-
29,622
19,169
19,279

43
7,887

34,989
40,063

896
3,583

¥100,542
22,061

-
29,594
18,336
19,000

51
9,147

33,218
40,144

765
3,691

¥92,657
13,603

-
29,143
19,402
18,841

58
8,700

21,460
43,348

1,380
3,808

¥99,913
16,108

-
30,595
22,012
18,481

26
11,264
16,042
52,263

1,950
3,984

Affiliated companies

Other

Affiliated companies

Other

Per Share Information

Net income (loss) - basic

Net income - diluted

Net assets

Cash dividends

¥46.43
38.75

1,280.51
8.50

(¥34.47)
-

1,293.42
8.50

¥22.21
18.31

1,293.30
14.50

¥62.90
50.10

1,350,31
10.00

¥98.33
83.81

1,415.75
16.00

Financial Ratios

Operating income to net sales (%)

Return on assets (%)

Return on equity (%)

Shareholders' equity ratio (%)

Consolidated dividend payout ratio (%)

Nonconsolidated dividend payout ratio (%)

10.1
3.7
7.4

52.3
16.5
41.8

8.1
2.2
5.0

46.8
15.3
30.3

7.0
0.8
2.0

39.9
57.2
40.8

3.4
(1.1)
(2.7)
40.6

-
30.9

6.1
1.5
3.7

39.4
18.3
31.4

Eleven-Year Summary

HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

The years ended March 20, 2001 - 2006 and the years ended December 31, 2006 - 2010.

Notes: The stated amounts have been rounded down to the nearest million yen from fiscal 2009, ended December 31, 2009, but had been rounded off to the
 nearest million yen prior to that year.

 1. U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥81.49=U.S.$1, the approximate Tokyo foreign exchange rate as of
  December 31, 2010.

 2. Effective from the year ended March 20, 2002, the revised accounting standards for financial instruments and employees’ retirement benefits were adopted.
  The amounts in prior years have not been restated.

 3. Effective from the year ended March 20, 2003, the revised accounting standard for per share information was adopted.
  The amounts in prior years have not been restated.

 4. Effective from the year ended December 31, 2006, the revised accounting standard for presentation of net assets in the balance sheet was adopted.
  The amounts in prior years have not been restated.

 5. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the accounting term for HORIBA, Ltd. and HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd. was only 9 months and
  11 days and that for HORIBA STEC Co., Ltd. was only 9 months as a result of a change in the fiscal year-end to December 31.
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Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Yen (Notes 2, 3, 4, 5, 6) U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2006.3 2006.12 2007.12 2008.12 2009.12 2010.12 2010.12

¥105,665
94,390
11,275
6,473
5,664
3,173
6,553

¥116,099
104,392

11,707
6,510
5,059
3,246
6,136

¥144,283
127,753
16,530

8,691
9,336
4,161
9,474

¥134,248
123,290

10,958
6,039
6,645
4,955

10,662

¥104,538
99,394

5,144
3,161
4,534
4,573
9,831

¥118,556
106,256

12,299
7,927
4,033
4,523
9,480

$1,454,853
1,303,914

150,926
97,275
49,490
55,503

116,333

¥119,976
14,884

-
37,408
27,273
20,223

45
13,017
13,866
65,446

3,690
4,461

¥129,236
15,673

-
42,485
30,947
21,700

44
14,917
16,224
72,371
4,400
4,697

¥154,367
20,565

-
45,873
33,734
24,071

53
16,792
25,177
80,377

4,100
4,976

¥133,279
22,660

63
37,330
29,802
23,115

40
11,063
20,984
76,829

1,237
5,146

¥129,580
27,590

6
34,505
23,363
23,602

52
10,515
18,348
79,906

2,250
5,133

¥137,290
34,459

1
36,425
24,843
22,516

60
13,423
17,128
84,019
2,303
5,202

$1,684,746
422,861

12
446,987
304,859
276,303

736
164,719
210,185

1,031,034
U.S. dollars (Note 1)     28.26

¥154.27
146.97

1,548.08
28.00

¥154.23
153.70

1,710.75
26.00

¥205.01
204.39

1,892.64
39.00

¥142.76
142.71

1,816.96
44.00

¥74.77
74.68

1,889.58
13.00

¥187.46
187.11

1,986.77
17.00

$2.30
2.29

24.38
0.20

4.9
2.4
4.0

61.7
17.4
30.0

8.2
4.2
7.7

57.6
30.8
30.0

11.5
6.1

11.4
52.1
19.0
30.1

10.1
5.2
9.4

56.0
16.9
30.0

10.7
5.9

11.0
54.6
18.1
33.8

10.4
5.9
9.7

61,2
9.1

30.3

Computations:
Shareholders’ equity = net assets - subscription rights to shares - minority interests
Net income per share (¥) = 100 x (net income – projected bonuses to directors and corporate auditors)*
 / (average number of shares issued and outstanding in the fiscal period, corrected for treasury stock)
Net assets per share (¥) = (shareholders’ equity – projected bonuses to directors and corporate auditors)*
 / (number of shares issued and outstanding, corrected for treasury stock)
Operating income to net sales (%) = 100 x operating income / net sales
Return on assets (ROA, %) = 100 x net income / average total assets in prior fiscal period
Return on equity (ROE, %) = 100 x net income / average shareholders’ equity in prior fiscal period
Shareholders’ equity ratio (%) = 100 x shareholders’ equity / total assets
Consolidated dividend payout ratio (%) = 100 x dividends paid / net income (consolidated)
Nonconsolidated dividend payout ratio (%) = 100 x dividends paid / net income (nonconsolidated)

*Directors' and corporate auditors' bonuses from the year ended December 31, 2006 are recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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I n  f i s c a l  2010  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  31,  2 010 ,  t h e  
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment posted 
record-high sales and contributed to a recovery in overall 
sales, whi le the Automotive Test Systems segment 
recorded a depressed level of sales. Compared to fiscal 
2001 ended March 20, 2002, all segments achieved 
growth of over 20%, despite significant impacts from 
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Net Sales by Segment

150,000

120,000

90,000

60,000

30,000

0

Net income and ROE recovered to ¥7.927 million and 
9.7% respectively in f iscal 2010. The amount of net 
income rebounded from two years of decrease af ter 
achieving the target amount of the previous Mid-Long 
Term Management Plan at the record-high level in fiscal 
2007. Cost reduction efforts and improved operational 
ef f ic iency dr iven by promotion of shared ser v ices 
resulted in a recovery in net income for the first time in 
three years.

Net Income (Loss)
Return on Equity (ROE)

Net Income and Return on Equity (ROE)

2008.12 2009.12 2010.12

12.0

10.0

8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

0.0

-2.0

-4.0

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

-2,000

-4,000
2007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

 6,039  3,161  7,927  8,691  6,510  6,473  3,524  2,074  786  -1,071  1,443 

 7.7 

 4.0 

 9.7 

 11.4 

 9.4 

 11.0 

 7.4 

 5.0 

 2.0 

 -2.7 

 3.7 

Total assets amounted to ¥137,290 million at the end of 
December 2010. In f iscal 2010, net assets per share 
was the record high at ¥1,987, while net income per 
share has recovered to the second highest amount in 
the company’s history at ¥187.

Net Income per Share
Net Assets per Share

 143 

 75 

 187 

 205 

 154  154 

 98 

 63 

 22 

 -34 

 46 

Net Income per Share and Net Assets per Share

2008.12 2009.12 2010.12

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

0

-500

250

200

150

100

50

0

-50

2007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems +46.5%

Scientific Instruments & Systems +21.1%

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems +92.9%

Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems +55.0%

Automotive Test Systems +75.7%

Total +59.2%2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.3

8,047

 74,468 
9,340

 78,501 
10,465

 85,073 
8,999

 92,492 10,319

 105,665 9,753

 116,099 

14,290

 144,283 

13,721

 134,248 

12,022

 104,538 11,787

 118,556 

17,201

14,350

14,521

20,349

(Millions of Yen)

(Millions of Yen) (%)

(Yen) (Yen)

21,131

15,942

14,391

17,696

23,582

17,301

14,764

18,960

27,022

18,777

18,183

19,510

34,446

20,508

18,039

22,351

37,945

22,989

20,111

25,300

51,475

25,836

26,934

25,748

54,232

24,722

16,762

24,810

37,192

22,337

12,483

20,503

35,751

22,514

27,676

20,825

 1,817  1,890 
 1,987 

 1,893 
 1,711 

 1,548 
 1,416 

 1,350  1,293  1,293  1,281 

Eleven-Year Summary
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I n  f i s c a l  2010  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  31,  2010 ,  t h e  
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment posted 
record-high sales and contributed to a recovery in overall 
sales, whi le the Automotive Test Systems segment 
recorded a depressed level of sales. Compared to fiscal 
2001 ended March 20, 2002, all segments achieved 
growth of over 20%, despite significant impacts from 
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Net Sales by Segment

150,000

120,000

90,000

60,000

30,000

0

Net income and ROE recovered to ¥7.927 million and 
9.7% respectively in f iscal 2010. The amount of net 
income rebounded from two years of decrease af ter 
achieving the target amount of the previous Mid-Long 
Term Management Plan at the record-high level in fiscal 
2007. Cost reduction efforts and improved operational 
ef f ic iency dr iven by promotion of shared ser v ices 
resulted in a recovery in net income for the first time in 
three years.

Net Income (Loss)
Return on Equity (ROE)

Operating Income
Operating Income to Net Sales

Total Assets
Return on Assets (ROA)

R&D Expeditures
R&D Expeditures to Net Sales

Capital Expenditures
Depreciations and Amortization

Inventories
Days

Net Income and Return on Equity (ROE)

2008.12 2009.12 2010.12

12.0

10.0

8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

0.0

-2.0

-4.0

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

-2,000

-4,000
2007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

 6,039  3,161  7,927  8,691  6,510  6,473  3,524  2,074  786  -1,071  1,443 

 7.7 

 4.0 

 9.7 

 11.4 

 9.4 

 11.0 

 7.4 

 5.0 

 2.0 

 -2.7 

 3.7 

Total assets amounted to ¥137,290 million at the end of 
December 2010. In f iscal 2010, net assets per share 
was the record high at ¥1,987, while net income per 
share has recovered to the second highest amount in 
the company’s history at ¥187.

Net Income per Share
Net Assets per Share

 143 

 75 

 187 

 205 

 154  154 

 98 

 63 

 22 

 -34 

 46 

Net Income per Share and Net Assets per Share

2008.12 2009.12 2010.12
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0
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-50

2007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

Operating Income and Operating Income to Net Sales

12.0

10.0

8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

0

18,000

15,000

12,000

9,000

6,000

3,000

0  10,958  5,144  12,299  16,530  11,707  11,275  9,373  6,850  5,474  2,547  4,750 

 8.2 

 4.9 

 10.4 

 11.5 

 10.1 

 10.7 
 10.1 

 8.1 

 7.0 

 3.4 

 6.1 

Inventories and Inventory Turnover (Days)
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0

40,000
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0
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 29,802  23,363  24,843  33,734  30,947  27,273  22,012  19,402  18,336  19,169  19,503 

Total Assets and Return on Assets (ROA)

9.0

7.5

6.0

4.5

3.0

1.5

0

180,000

150,000

120,000

90,000

60,000
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 4.2 

 2.4 

 5.9  6.1 
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 5.9 

 3.7 

 2.2 

 0.8 
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 1.5 

R&D Expenditures and
R&D Expenditures to Net Sales

12.0

10.0

8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

0

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0  10,662  9,831  9,480  9,474  6,136  6,553  5,636  5,129  4,044  4,336  4,938 

 7.9 
 9.4 

 8.0 
 6.6 

 5.3 
 6.2 

 6.1  6.0 

 5.2 

 5.8 
 6.3 

Cash Dividends per Share
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 28.0 
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 14.5 
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Capital Expenditures and
Depreciations and Amortization

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

 4,955 

 4,573 
 4,523 

 3,246 

4,161

 3,173  2,944  3,037  2,915 

 3,381  3,276 

 6,645 

 4,534 

 4,033 

 9,336 

 5,059 

 5,664 

 3,956 

 3,501 
 3,444 

 3,137  3,032 

Process & Environmental Instruments & Systems +46.5%

Scientific Instruments & Systems +21.1%

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems +92.9%

Medical-Diagnostic Instruments & Systems +55.0%

Automotive Test Systems +75.7%

Total +59.2% 2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.32008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.3

8,047

 74,468 
9,340

 78,501 
10,465

 85,073 
8,999

 92,492 10,319

 105,665 9,753

 116,099 

14,290

 144,283 

13,721

 134,248 

12,022

 104,538 11,787

 118,556 

17,201

14,350

14,521

20,349

(Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen) (%) (Millions of Yen) (Days)

(Millions of Yen) (%) (Millions of Yen) (%) (Millions of Yen) (%)

(Yen) (Yen) (Yen) (Millions of Yen)

21,131

15,942

14,391

17,696

23,582

17,301

14,764

18,960

27,022

18,777

18,183

19,510

34,446

20,508

18,039

22,351

37,945

22,989

20,111

25,300

51,475

25,836

26,934

25,748

54,232

24,722

16,762

24,810

37,192

22,337

12,483

20,503

35,751

22,514

27,676

20,825

 1,817  1,890 
 1,987 

 1,893 
 1,711 

 1,548 
 1,416 

 1,350  1,293  1,293  1,281 

2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

 133,279  129,580  137,290  154,367  129,236  119,976  99,913  92,657  100,542  98,766  101,006 

2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32002.32001.3

 100,542  98,766  101,006 

2002.3

2008.12 2009.12 2010.122007.122006.122006.32005.32004.32003.32001.3 2002.3

Eleven-Year Summary
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Consolidated Statements of Income Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries | Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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51 Annual Report 2010  | 52

FINANCIAL DATA
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CORPORATE PHILOSOPHY

Business Operations
We, a t  the  HORIBA,  app ly  our  most  advanced 

analy tical technologies to provide highly or iginal 

analytical and measuring products and equipment in 

such fields as engine emissions, scientific analysis, 

industrial and process control, environment monitoring, 

semi -conducto r  p rocess cont ro l ,  med ica l  and 

health-care, and biotechnology, thereby contributing to 

the progress of science and technology, improvement 

in the quality, development and benefit of human 

health. We are engaging in the new businesses for 

derivative and peripheral products aim to develop 

scient i f ic technology and improve the l i fe of the 

community, while at the same time minimizing the 

impact on the environment.

  We strictly abide by all environmental protection laws

and regulations in our business activities. In addition, 

all HORIBA Group companies are required to attain the 

highest levels of quality for establishing, developing, 

and maintaining environmental systems, including 

implementing internal control standards that minimize 

the impact that our business activities have on the 

environment.

  We strive to deliver higher value-added products and 

services in the shortest possible time to customers all 

over the world, combining the functions and specialties

of development, production, sales, and services from 

g loba l l y  l ocated  po in ts  th roughou t  the  wo r ld.  

Furthermore, we aim to be the leader in the global 

market in the fields and product segments in which we 

operate, to meet all customers’ needs consistently, and 

HORIBA’s company motto

“Joy and Fun”

to effectively maximize our limited resources through a 

policy of selective investment.

Customer Responsiveness
We maintain a philosophy of pursuing technology to 

the ult imate degree in both the fundamental and 

applied technology f ields, supplying products that 

continuously satisfy customers’ requirements. We are 

commit ted to of fer ing top-qual i ty, highly re l iable 

products and serv ices with a consistent level of 

excellence throughout the world. We are obliged to 

obser ve the highest standards for establ ish ing, 

developing, and maintaining quality control systems. To 

provide products and services to customers in the 

fastest delivery time possible, we have adopted the 

slogan “Ultra-Quick Supplier” for all our activities. This 

slogan encompasses not only production lead times 

but also development, marketing and sales, service, 

and control functions.

Responsibility to Shareholders and Investors
Our basic policy is to calculate annual dividends on an

allocated rate of net income. Important information 

regarding management and business operations are 

fully disclosed on a regular basis to shareholders and 

potential investors. A timely responsive management 

control system should be maintained by HORIBA 

Group companies to ensure that company objectives 

are met, profit generated and the information disclosed 

represents the true performance of the company as 

well as its management.

Employees
We are proud of the entrepreneurial spirit that led to 

the creation of HORIBA Group companies. Each 

employee is made aware of this heritage, and we 

act ive ly  encourage ideas and innovat ions f rom 

individual employees. HORIBA promotes an open and 

fair business environment that allows all employees to 

achieve their individual goals and maximize their 

potential. To further each employee’s personal and 

professional growth, we encourage thinking from a 

global perspective and have established a global 

personnel development program and performance 

evaluation system. We value employees who challenge 

the i r  persona l ab i l i t ies and recognize the i r  own 

accomplishments.

Corporate Philosophy

Originates from the belief that if we take interest 

and pride in the work that occupies most of the 

active time in our lives, in the place where we 

spend the large part of each day, then as a 

result our satisfaction with life will increase, and 

we will be able to enjoy our lives even more. 

Taking interest and pride in our work leads us to 

“Joy and Fun.”
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Corporate Data

Head Office 2, Miyanohigashi-cho, Kisshoin, Minami-ku, Kyoto
 601-8510, Japan

Founded October 17, 1945

Incorporated January 26, 1953

Paid in Capital 12,011 miillion yen

Number of Employeees 5,202(Consolidated)

Fiscal Closing Date December 31, annually

Annual Meeting of Shareholders Held in March

Transfer Agent The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

Independent Auditors KPMG AZSA LLC

Stock Listings Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section

 Osaka Securities Exchange, First Section

 Securities Code: 6856

As of December 31, 2010Corporate Information

Stock Price Trend

Name of Shareholders

Taiyo Fund, L.P.

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.

Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd.

Masao Horiba

Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. 9

Northern Trust Co.(AVFC) Sub A/C American Clients

The Bank of Kyoto, Ltd.

Atsushi Horiba

HORIBA Raku-Raku Kai

The Kyoto Chuo Shinkin Bank

Shares (Thousands)

3,475

2,506

2,251

1,300

1,022

1,009

828

808

783

645

Percentage (%)

8.17

5.89

5.29

3.05

2.40

2.37

1.94

1.90

1.84

1.51

As of December 31, 2010Major Shareholders

Foreign investors 2.35% Others 2.30%

Securities companies 0.50%

Financial institutions 0.84%

Individual investors 94.01%

Others
8.55%

Number of
Shareholders
7,650

Number of
Shares
42,532,752

Ratio of
Shares
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